
Date Published:28 October 2020     

Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel

Friday 6 November 2020 at 10.00 am

Please note: This meeting will be held remotely and can be accessed 
by clicking on the following link:
https://youtu.be/whLCisBKJuQ 

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Andrea Clarke

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6) Andrea Clarke

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Andrea Clarke

4  POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER - UPDATE 

The Police and Crime Commissioner to give a verbal update on activity 
since the last meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.

PCC Martin Surl

5  COVID 19 ENFORCEMENT PLAN 

The Panel to receive a verbal update on how the Police are enforcing 
Covid-19 rules.

PCC Martin Surl

6  POLICE AND CRIME PLAN REFRESH (Pages 7 - 18)

Following the receipt of the draft Plan at the meeting of the Panel on 18 
September 2020, the refreshed Police and Crime Plan was launched on 7 
October 2020 at the Sabrina Centre. Information is available at this link 
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/police-and-crime-plan-update-
2020/.

DPCC Chris 
Brierley

7  CRIMINAL JUSTICE UPDATE 

The Panel to receive a verbal update.

PCC Martin Surl

8  OPENING OF THE SABRINA CENTRE 

The Panel to receive a verbal update.

PCC Martin Surl

9  OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER - CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE REPORT (Pages 19 - 24)

Richard Bradley

https://youtu.be/whLCisBKJuQ
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/police-and-crime-plan-update-2020/
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/police-and-crime-plan-update-2020/


    

FUTURE MEETINGS

9 February 2021
23 March 2021
7 July 2021
28 September 2021
3 November 2021

All meetings start at 10.00am 

Membership –  Cllr Colin Hay (Chairman), Cllr David Norman MBE, Cllr Loraine Patrick, 
Cllr Steve Robinson (Vice-Chair) and Cllr Brian Tipper Cllr Ray Brassington, Cllr Chris Brine, Cllr 
Jonny Brownsteen, Cllr Philip Burford, Cllr Collette Finnegan, Cllr David Gray and Cllr Karen 
McKeown
Independent Members - William Alexander (Independent Member) and Martin Smith (Independent 
member)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – – Please declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
or personal interests that you may have relating to specific matters which may be 
discussed at this meeting, by signing the form that will be available in the Cabinet Suite.  
Completing this list is acceptable as a declaration, but does not, of course, prevent 
members from declaring an interest orally in relation to individual agenda items.  The list 
will be available for public inspection.

Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to make a declaration of interest 
are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Rob Ayliffe Tel: 01452 328506 e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Andrea Clarke, Senior Democratic Services Adviser
:01452 324204 e-mail: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 324203) to make the necessary arrangements
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the
meeting. 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel held on Friday 18 
September 2020 at the Virtual Meeting - Web ex meeting.

PRESENT:
William Alexander
Cllr Ray Brassington
Cllr Chris Brine
Cllr Jonny Brownsteen
Cllr Philip Burford
Cllr Collette Finnegan

Cllr Colin Hay (Chairman)
Cllr Karen McKeown
Cllr Steve Robinson (Vice-Chair)
Martin Smith
Cllr Brian Tipper

Substitutes: Cllr Rob Bird (In place of Cllr David Gray)
Cllr Andrew Gravells MBE (In place of Cllr Loraine Patrick)
Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE (In place of Cllr David Norman MBE)

Officers in attendance: Simon Harper – Democratic Services Manager
Martin Surl – Police and Crime Commissioner
Chris Brierley – Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner
Ruth Greenwood - Head of Policy, Performance and Strategy,
OPCC
Richard Bradley – Chief Executive OPCC
Detective Chief Superintendent Richard Cooper

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
1.1 The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record and signed by the 

Chairman subject to the following amendment: -
The last sentence in minute 6.4 be amended to ‘It was therefore agreed that a letter be 
sent to Alex Chalk MP to ask for his support, as a Minister in the Department of Justice and 
a local MP, in maintaining a Gloucestershire based court system.’ 

1.2 It was noted that a response had been received from Alex Chalk MP and this had been 
shared with Panel members. It was agreed that it would be important to maintain an 
overview of this matter, within the context that this matter was outside the Panel’s remit. It 
was suggested that Panel members might wish to raise this matter through their own 
councils.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
No declarations of interest were received.

3. POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER - UPDATE 
3.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) updated the Panel on activity undertaken since 

the Panel meeting on 17 July 2020. This included: -

 Discussion of the Gloucestershire court system with Alex Chalk MP,
 The PCC has been in discussion with the Constabulary about ongoing concerns 

raised about contacting the police via the 101 number.  The Commissioner 
reminded the Panel that the number was originally established as a non-emergency 
number for public services but, due to austerity, other partners (nationally) withdrew 
from the service.  The service was, however, still used to report many issues that 
were not in the remit of the Constabulary.  More analysis would be carried out into 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

non-crime related calls with a view to closer working with relevant partner agencies.  
As part of this, work was underway to update the customer relations system which 
would capture those calls to the Control Room that did not result in a call for service 
(approx. 40% of all calls).  

 The public were now able to report non-emergency crime online, and the Police and 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) encouraged people take this 
approach (https://www.gloucestershire.police.uk/contact/af/contact-us/).  The 
website channels users into different areas of business and a reference number 
was instantly provided.  

 The PCC had received numerous calls from members of the public concerned 
about dog thefts in the county.  The Commissioner reported that these crimes were 
taken very seriously in line with the ‘Compassionate Approach’ priority within the 
Police and Crime Plan.  In a more high profile case the stolen dog had been located 
and returned to the owners.  In another case, numerous puppies were found in a 
van travelling up the M5.  The puppies were headed for a farm elsewhere.  
Following interventions by the Constabulary, the puppies were seized, received 
veterinary care and taken to a shelter.  The puppies were now being rehomed.     

 The OPCC was about to submit a planning application for the refurbishment of the 
Bamfurlong Operations Centre.  This was a strategic site for the Constabulary and 
the county and refurbishment was long overdue.   

 The number of cases on the court waiting list had grown significantly due to Covid-
19. Gloucestershire was an outlier with regard to getting cases through the system. 
It was suggested that the current state of the court estate in Gloucestershire did not 
help. Domestic Abuse cases were being prioritised and would be heard mostly in 
Bristol.  In an attempt to help alleviate some of the issues within the local courts, the 
PCC has been in dialogue with HM Courts and Tribunal Service (HMCTS) about 
reopening Cirencester Court as a ‘nightingale’ provision. 

3.2 In response to a question the PCC explained that with regard to time taken to pick up 101 
calls Gloucestershire was not an outlier. Gloucestershire Police was not currently able to 
identify the number of dropped calls; this would be rectified by the introduction of the new 
customer relations system.

3.3 Panel members agreed that the Police should not be in the position of having to take calls 
that would be better managed by other agencies. The PCC explained that during the recent 
storm there had been 333 999 calls and 108 101 calls; it was not possible for the Police to 
pick up all these calls. It was also explained that during this period the Police had been 
involved in removing trees from the highway which was outside their remit.

4. POLICE AND CRIME PLAN REFRESH 
4.1 The Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner (DPCC) gave a detailed presentation of the 

refresh of the Police and Crime Plan (for information the presentation slides were uploaded 
to the council’s website and included in the minute book). The Panel was informed that the 
Plan had been refreshed within the context of the Black Lives Matter movement, #MeToo, 
the postponed PCC elections and Covid-19. 

4.2 It was noted that the Plan had received praised at the national level by the National 
Farmers Union for its response to rural crime.

4.3 In response to comments about the positive impact of the Children First programme which 
diverted young people away from the Criminal Justice System (CJS), a Panel member 
stated that it was important to have clarity regarding the data underpinning the Young 
People Becoming Adults Priority. They commented that it was important to bear in mind 

Page 2

https://www.gloucestershire.police.uk/contact/af/contact-us/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

that Community Rehabilitation Companies (CRC) worked with adults; it would be important 
to ensure that this data was not utilised in this regard. It was also questioned whether there 
was an understanding of how Gloucestershire compared with other areas with regard to 
reoffending? They questioned the accuracy of the data quoted by the DPCC.

4.4 The DPCC informed the Panel that the Children First initiative was having a positive impact 
on reoffending behaviour in young people; before Children First there had been a 40% re-
offending rate, whereas now this was 13%. This initiative has diverted a lot of young people 
away from criminality. The DPCC informed the Panel that he was confident in the data.

4.5 It was commented that parking on pavements and noisy exhausts were anti social and it 
was questioned whether the Police did respond to these types of incidents. The PCC 
informed the meeting that the Special Constables were being very supportive in responding 
to incidents relating to noisy exhausts, and the Police would respond to parking on 
pavements if resources were available. It was hoped that agencies could work together on 
this matter. Panel members were also informed that the government was currently 
undertaking a consultation on ‘Pavement parking: options for change’ 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/managing-pavement-parking/pavement-
parking-options-for-change). 

4.6 During the presentation of the refresh of the Plan the DPCC had indicated that there was 
more detail that would not be available until the public launch of the Plan. The Panel 
therefore did not feel that it could fully support the refresh without being privy to the full 
detail. It did however endorse the principles laid out in the refresh, and supported the 
direction of travel. The Panel looked forward to receiving the full detail at its next meeting.

5. REVISED POLICE OPERATING MODEL 
5.1 The Panel welcomed Detective Chief Superintendent Richard Cooper to the meeting to 

present the new operating model for Gloucestershire. The Chief Constable had made the 
Panel aware that changes were in motion at the Panel’s meeting on 17 July 2020.

5.2 The Panel was informed that the Constabulary had made these changes in order to make 
sure it remained at the heart of its communities and delivered on its Police and Crime Plan 
priorities. It was explained that among the key changes were:
 Enhanced Local Policing Teams across the county with officers who would be the 

first to respond and investigate crime.
 More officers based in Gloucester and Cheltenham.
 New Superintendents for Local Policing Areas.
 Detective supervisors in each area.

5.3 This approach would enable greater opportunities for partnership working at the local level 
such as with the local Community Safety Partnerships.  It was noted that specialist 
provisions, eg counter terrorism, safeguarding, would remain under central command. 

5.4 In response to a question it was clarified that training was essential; all officers have to be 
qualified to do what they do. The complexities of modern policing also reinforced the need 
for training; this was why the OPCC had established the Sabrina Centre as a centre for 
Police training in Gloucestershire. 

5.5 Most members felt that this was a positive step forward, although there were questions 
related to visibility of officers as these were large geographical areas; in particular what 
does this mean for a ward/divisional councillor? It was explained that it was not just about 
visibility but also strong leadership. Relationships would evolve as the model bedded in. 

Page 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/managing-pavement-parking/pavement-parking-options-for-change
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/managing-pavement-parking/pavement-parking-options-for-change


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

5.6 A member stated that the important factor was outcomes; would this model mean that the 
response to calls/crimes would be quicker/more effective? The PCC informed the Panel 
that this was a step in the right direction. A more locally based approach would mean that 
officers would know their localities and local issues better. It was acknowledged that 
understanding outcomes was challenging; candid conversations would be required with the 
public and local councillors could help with this. This was an enduring challenge for the 
Police.

5.7 The Chairman suggested that it could be useful to have a communications strategy which 
would help all councillors understand who their local contacts were.

6. OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER - CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
REPORT 

6.1 The Chief Executive Officer, OPCC, presented their report. Member’s attention was drawn 
to the decision to extend the term of appointment of the Chief Constable for a further three 
years. This decision had been based on the very successful leadership of the Chief 
Constable, and to deliver consistency and sustainability at the Constabulary. It was noted 
that this was not something that the Panel needed to agree as it was an extension to the 
contract rather than an appointment to the position. Panel members supported this decision 
and commented that the Chief Constable was doing a superb job.

6.2 With regard to complaints it was suggested that previous data be included so that the 
Panel could identify changes.

(For information - this item had been taken early on the agenda to accommodate the Chief 
Executive, OPCC.)

7. MENTAL HEALTH REPORT AND POLICE DEMAND 
7.1 The Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner (DPCC) presented the report which was 

written, in part, by a Masters student from the University of Gloucestershire. He reminded 
the Panel of Gloucestershire Police’s involvement in the BBC series ‘Reported Missing’ 
which had highlighted the work of the Police in finding missing people, and the impact on 
resources; it was important to note that this was non crime related work. On average 10 
people a day went missing. One of the episodes had focussed on a person with mental 
health issues. 

7.2 The impact of mental health calls on Police resources was significant. The public view was 
that the Police should focus on crime. However until mental health issues were better 
supported/responded to by agencies the Police would continue to be the first line of support 
for mental health issues in an emergency (999) situation. 

7.3 The DPCC stated that there must be a better way to support people in a mental health 
crisis. Agencies would need to work together; the Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (GCCG) had a significant role as the commissioning body for health services in the 
county.

7.4 In commissioning this report it had been hoped to undertake a time and motion study to 
identify the number of calls received related to mental health issues and time taken to 
support them. However the Covid-19 pandemic had prevented this part of the study from 
going ahead.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

7.5 Members agreed that this was an important issue that needed to be addressed; more work 
was needed across agencies to ensure that better support was available to people in a 
mental health crisis such that they would not necessarily need to always turn to the Police. 

7.6 The Panel was informed that Mental Wellbeing was a priority for the Gloucestershire Health 
and Wellbeing Board (GHWB). This was due to be discussed at the Board’s meeting on 22 
September 2020; the report would be shared with Panel members. It was agreed that this 
was an issue that the GHWB needed to drive forward. The Police were only part of the 
response – all agencies needed to work together on this issue.

7.7 The Panel asked that its thanks be shared with the Masters Student for this comprehensive 
report.

8. SAFER STREETS GRANTS AWARDS 
8.1 Some members of the Panel had a robust debate with the Police and Crime Commissioner 

(PCC) on this matter. 

8.2 Responses to questions included: -
 The OPCC had received information from the Home Office (HO) on this scheme.
 The HO had instructed the OPCC not to rely on its data but should instead use local 

Police data which would be more current and granular; this had therefore significantly 
reduced the number of areas identified by the HO.

 The criteria for this funding had not been included in the initial documentation.
 Burglary was an issue that the OPCC and Gloucestershire Police took seriously.
 It was not appropriate to compare Gloucestershire with other areas in the South West 

given the differences in population and geography.  Comparisons were with Most 
Similar Group (MSG) which was Forces that were independently deemed most similar 
demographically. 

 Data was submitted to the HO who then undertook comparative analysis with Police 
areas nationally.

 Not all Police areas had applied for this funding (four out of the eight Forces in the 
MSG for Gloucestershire)

 Due to a push on burglary by the Police last year this had reduced by 25%. Burglary 
had reduced by 27.6% since the PCC had taken up office; the national rate was 17.3%

 Once the criteria were known detailed analysis had been undertaken to 
ascertain/identify whether there were specific areas in Gloucestershire that would 
qualify for this funding. There were two possible areas: one in Cheltenham and one in 
Stroud.

 The Covid-19 pandemic and associated lockdown had had an impact on decision 
making. The Police were required to work in different ways and respond to 
predominantly non crime related calls. There had also been concern that given the 
deadline for use of these funds (31 March 2021) the money would have to be returned 
to the HO unused due to the focus on the response to the pandemic.

8.3 The Chairman interjected as the discussion between some members of the Panel and the 
PCC had deteriorated. Having given the matter sufficient time for discussion he closed the 
meeting.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 1.28 pm

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Page 6



E�E�Y C�N�A�T C�U�
T�

• E
�E�Y C�I�E M�T�E�S •

By Martin Surl, Police and
Crime Commissioner
for Gloucestershire

GLOUCESTERSHIRE

POLICE AND
CRIME PLAN
2020 l 2022

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Page 2     l     Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020 - 2022

Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan

In 2012 when I was first elected, 
I wrote my first Police & Crime 
Plan. This latest version builds on 
the great work achieved over the 

past eight years. At its heart is the 
voice and thoughts of the public, by 
whom I am elected to represent. It 
has been written in recognition of 
these unprecedented times. Now, 
as we adjust to the harshest and 
most severe peacetime crisis in living 
memory, our ability and need to adapt 
is greater than ever.

This plan sets out my vision for 
Gloucestershire Constabulary. It is how 
I see community safety being delivered 
in partnership with other agencies 
and local communities, across the 
county. The role of Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) and my office 
is not about directing operational 
activity - that is for the Chief 
Constable and the Constabulary’s 
Corporate Strategy to outline. This 
document is about setting the 
overarching direction and aspirations 
for policing and community safety in 
our county.  

The arrival of Covid-19 has brought 
with it unprecedented challenges. We have a moral 
obligation to question what more we can do to tackle 
prejudices and inequalities in our society. This has been 
highlighted recently by the abhorrent killing of George 
Floyd in America, but also issues raised by the #metoo 
movement. We now have a real opportunity to move 
forward based on what the county needs and local people 
want. We cannot drift into a sector-by-sector approach to 
regeneration because, as we are constantly reminded, we 
are all in this together – and the Constabulary and Office 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) have pivotal 
roles to play in that partnership. 

Of course, it is about policing and tackling crime, but 
within its wider brief is the need to deliver a service that is 
equitable for all. 

The next 18 months and beyond
Foreword

Neighbourhood policing is the 
foundation on which we build 
all our other capabilities and our 
relationships with regional and 
national counterparts, specialists and 
partners. Every crime matters because 
behind every crime is someone who 
needs help and support and the 
Constabulary must be mindful of 
this in all its work. Every contact is an 
opportunity to provide help and build 
trust and confidence. Clearer and 
easier ways for the public to contact 
the police must be identified and 
communicated.

The hallmarks of a county 
force include understanding its 
communities, its responsibilities 
and the expectations of the public. 
Tackling crime and preventing it, are 
fundamental and lie at the heart of 
this plan. Inevitably, with every crime 
there is a victim and I want victims to 
feel that every crime matters because 
every victim matters. This means 
reasonable expectations about levels 
of police service should be agreed and 
maintained. 

I advocate a partnership approach 
that harnesses a sense of local pride, local ingenuity and 
local enterprise.  Such an approach identifies opportunities 
and strengths and mobilises the county to regenerate as 
one. This should recognise the importance of the voluntary 
and community sectors, as I have always done and will 
continue to do so for as long as I am in office. 

Our mission for Gloucestershire must be to unleash its 
potential. That is why our fundamental aim has to be to 
make every contact involving the Constabulary and the 
public count because every contact is an opportunity to 
build a future we want and of which we can be proud. 

Martin Surl
Police and Crime Commissioner

“Every contact involving 
the Constabulary and the 
public count because every 
contact is an opportunity to 
build a future we want and 
of which we can be proud.”

Page 8



Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020-2022     l     Page 3

2020 l 2022

Gloucestershire is one of the safest places in the 
country in which to live and, for the vast majority 
of us, contact with the police is a rare occurrence. 
It is my expectation that should the Constabulary 

be called upon however, it will strive to understand and 
meet the reasonable expectations of local residents. 

Reasonable to me means a crime 
is recorded promptly and correctly, 
crime numbers are provided, where 
appropriate community alerts 
are issued, victims are referred to 
appropriate support services and 
support and advice about anything 
from court processes to home 
security are provided. 
Reasonable also means that victims 
feel they are at the heart of the police 
response, and that the police understand that managing 
demand or seeking efficiencies is never more of a priority 
than they are. As committed public servants, I know that 
people in the Constabulary always strives to put the victim 
first and I will continue to hold the Chief Constable to 
account for the way it adheres to the Victims’ Code.  

Protecting the most vulnerable in our society is a golden 
thread that runs through policing in this country, early 
intervention and prevention is key to prevent victimisation 
and criminalisation of our young and most vulnerable.  A 
lot of work nationally has focussed on organised criminality, 
through national organisations such as the National Crime 
Agency, Counter Terrorism Network and Action Fraud. 

These have a clear remit and operate 
on a national basis, which can often 
feel far removed from policing in our 
county, however their decisions have 
local outcomes. I therefore expect 
that Gloucestershire Constabulary 
will be fully connected with these 
organisations and them with us. 

I will expect the Constabulary to 
understand the reasonable expectations 

of local residents, services and businesses; to continue to 
learn from past and present good work, as well as mistakes, 
so that it recognises where change is needed to provide a 
proportionate level of support to help keep the county safe. 
To achieve this, the Constabulary must be a listening organ-
isation that approaches every contact with the community 
as a learning opportunity, be that through the Force Control 
Room, through complaints or through thanks.  

“A hallmark of a successful 
county police force is its 
approach to its central 
workload. This includes 
crimes like burglary, anti-
social behaviour, domestic 
abuse and retail crime.”

Every crime matters,
every contact counts

Page 9



Page 4     l     Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020 - 2022

Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan

A hallmark of a successful county police force is its 
approach to its central workload. This includes those 
neighbourhood crimes like burglary, anti-social behaviour, 
domestic abuse and retail crime.  Burglary is a heinous 
crime and its prevention and detection must be core police 
activity. Some of the safest 
places in Gloucestershire, 
and therefore the 
country, are our rural 
communities but that 
doesn’t mean they are 
immune to victimisation.  
As infrequent as it may 
be, opportunist and 
organised crime in the 
countryside must be tackled and future crimes prevented. 
The Constabulary must give due regard to issues that 
cause the most amount of harm and distress to our local 
communities and businesses by making every contact 
count. 

Recorded crime does not always reflect the real impact of 
criminality on the county and a good example of this is 
fraud.  I was the first PCC to make tackling crime on the 
internet a priority and as a result, cyber-crime is now core 
business for the Constabulary. My office will continue to 
work with the Constabulary and partners to improve our 
understanding of the impact of fraud, internet and phone 
scams and to find a better way of confronting it.

My role and that of my office is to be the voice of victims 
and to advocate on their behalf, no more so than for the 
devastating crimes of domestic abuse and sexual violence.  
Some good work has been done - from a sexual violence 
needs assessment and specialised commissioning of 
services - and I want to see this work built on over the 
coming years, with the aim of reducing sexual violence and 
domestic abuse in our county.

When offenders are brought to justice, we want a Criminal 
Justice System that works for the people it serves and 
with victims and witnesses at the heart of all that it does.  

That is why I am committed 
to working with partners to 
improve the justice journey for 
all, with reduced reoffending 
rates and better outcomes for 
victims.  Essential to this will 
be a coordinated strategy for 
responding to the needs of 
victims, with appropriate levels 

of service agreed and maintained, tailored to the needs of 
Gloucestershire.

l	 A Constabulary that is accessible and accountable 
to the public because every crime matters and 
every contact counts

l	 Recognition that every crime begins and ends in a 
neighbourhood.

l	 Reduced victimisation, exploitation and 
criminalisation by protecting the most vulnerable in 
our society 

l	 A shared understanding of the impact with 
partners and police of fraud, internet and phone 
scams and find a better way of confronting it 
together

l	 A Constabulary that is transparent, that maintains 
and improves high levels of trust and confidence 
with all sections of the community 

l	 A compassionate  approach to how victims 
are supported across the organisation and the 
development of a central hub to coordinate this 
approach 

l	 A commitment to partnership working to reduce 
domestic abuse and sexual violence and to support 
the victims

l	 A Constabulary that strives to be equitable for all, 
and acknowledges that inequalities still exist in 
communities and the county

l	 A organisation that learns from its mistakes in 
order to deliver a proportionate level of support to 
help keep the county safe

l	 A clear understanding of what is meant by a 
‘reasonable level of service’ and a commitment to 
deliver this. 

At a glance…
Every crime matters, 

every contact counts 

“As we anticipate the 
challenges ahead, 
our new mission is to 
make every contact 
count because every 
crime matters.”

“Our new mission 
is to make every 
contact count 
because every 
crime matters.”

Page 10



Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020-2022     l     Page 5

2020 l 2022

Safer days and nights

This priority is about a partnership between the 
police, public and businesses in our county. It 
maintains the Peelian Principles of the police being 
the public and the public being the police. 

Crime is an issue for everyone and something the police 
cannot tackle successfully on their own. Solutions can only 
come fr om an understanding of what causes crime and 
what contributes to it.  My ‘Safer days and nights’ approach 
is about community safety in its widest sense, working in 
partnership with everyone who has a shared interest and 
responsibility in keeping Gloucestershire safe. 
One of the lessons fr om Covid-19 is that in a time of crisis, 
routine organisational barriers can be set aside to enable 
people to pull together for the greater good.  Statutory, 
voluntary and community groups have been working 
together in order to protect and support local communities. 
I see no good reason why those bodies cannot continue to 
operate in a similar spirit of fellowship.
I will expect the Constabulary to work in conjunction with 
my offi  ce (OPCC) and with other partners such as Safer 
Gloucestershire and our Community Safety Partnerships 
(CSPs)  to address those issues that cause the most amount 
of concern and harm to local residents.   

In order to achieve this, over the course of this Police 
and Crime Plan, I want the Chief Constable to develop a 

properly costed fi ve-year plan  for growing the capacity and 
capability of the Constabulary to meet current and future 
demands. Whether that means recruiting more police 
offi  cers, Police Community Support Offi  cers (PCSOs),  police 
staff , volunteers and/or expanding the Special Constabulary 
or in developing relationships with local Community Safety 
Partnerships, I want to see an aff ordable plan to ‘grow the 
fr ontline.’ This must include an unequivocal commitment 
to working in partnership with others in the voluntary, 
community, public and private sectors. That is why I 
support of the Constabulary’s commitment to investing in 
the Citizens in Policing agenda.

Whilst the Government indicates it is committed to 
increasing the number of police offi  cers, it is only by 
working in partnerships with our statutory and voluntary 
sectors that the county’s full potential will be realised.  

Crucial to the recovery fr om Covid19 will be the day-time 
and night-time economy (NTE).  Businesses operating 
in our villages, towns and city will need all the support 
they can get to rise fr om the clutches of Covid-19 and 
individuals and our communities must feel safe and secure 
when out working, shopping and socialising. Policing the 
NTE in our main urban areas must be based on the needs 
of those communities and, again, will benefi t fr om close 

Partnership working: PCC Martin Surl  (centre) and DPCC Chris Brierley 
(back right) meeting representatives fr om Gloucester City Council 

Licensing Dept, Gloucester City Safe, city protection offi  cers, and
‘the Cavern, Gloucester’s only non-alcohol venue for young people 

Page 11



Page 6     l     Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020 - 2022

Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan

working with partners in the leisure and entertainment 
sector and other key stakeholders including Street Pastors, 
Guardians, Night Safe, taxi wardens, Pub Watch and 
Business Crime Reduction Partnerships. 

Since 2012, the OPCC has developed a very strong working 
relationship with the voluntary and community sectors 
and I will continue to commit 1% 
of the policing budget through the 
Commissioner’s Fund to continue 
this good work. Local communities 
have a key role to play in supporting 
policing in our county. I want the 
police to embed that thinking into its 
future planning by further developing 
community based schemes like 
Neighbourhood Watch, Community 
Speedwatch, Paws on Patrol, Business Crime Reduction 
partnerships and other like-minded initiatives. 

Under ‘Safer days and nights’, I also want to see an equal 
focus on anti-social behaviour (ASB), which far too often I 
hear referred to as ‘low level’. This diminishes the impact the 
drip effect of ASB can have on individuals and communities. 
There are powers to deal with ASB from environmental 

to neighbourhood disputes. These powers sit with local 
councils and housing providers, we will support them in 
their efforts to tackle ASB which falls within their remit, 
whilst the police will focus their attention on the ASB that 
they can influence particularly those behaviours that lead 
to criminality. 

It’s right to acknowledge that 
the police, councils and housing 
providers have done much to 
address ASB across the county 
and I want to support this with a 
coordinated approach through Safer 
Gloucestershire. This will help us 
identify not only best practice but 
also areas for improvement and 
ensure that those experiencing or 

dealing with ASB receive the best support. We’ve already 
commissioned a dedicated ASB worker as part of our wider 
victims’ service commissioning contract to support this 
work. 

Above all, over the course of this Police and Crime Plan, I 
want the police to maintain a strong visible presence in our 
communities and continue to build on it in the future.

“I want to see an affordable 
plan to ‘grow the frontline’, 
including a commitment 
to work in partnership with 
the voluntary, community, 
public and private sectors.”

l	 Safer days and nights is about community safety 
it its widest sense, working with partners and local 
communities, to keep Gloucestershire safe

l	 Statutory, voluntary and community groups will be 
encouraged to work together to protect and support 
local communities as they have done during the 
pandemic

l	 The Constabulary will develop a properly costed five-
year plan for growing its capacity and capability to 
meet current and future demands 

l	 The Constabulary will continue to develop strong 
partnership relationships with voluntary, community, 
public and private sectors and with local communities

l	 The Constabulary and the OPCC remain committed 
to harnessing the power of volunteers in policing, and 
we fully support the moves within the Constabulary 
to develop the Citizens in Policing agenda with 
dedicated resources, training and opportunities 

l	 The OPCC and Constabulary will continue to commit 
1% of the policing budget in Gloucestershire through 
the Commissioner’s Fund to continue the good work 
the voluntary and community sectors

l	 Policing of the night-time economy (NTE) will be based 
on the needs of local communities and in conjunction 
with stakeholders in the leisure and entertainment 
sector and other key partners including Street Pastors, 
Guardians, Night Safe, taxi wardens, Pub Watch and 
Business Crime Reduction Partnerships

l	 The Constabulary will work with partners to identify 
the best means of tackling anti-social behaviour at a 
county level whist ensuring prioritisation is given by 
the police in tackling those behaviours that lead to 
criminality

l	 Because prevention is better than cure, I want the 
Constabulary to develop a more innovative approach 
to crime prevention working with partners to build 
on the good work already being done across the 
county, including community based schemes like 
Neighbourhood Watch, Community Speedwatch, 
Paws on Patrol and Business Crime Reduction 
partnerships

l	 The Constabulary will maintain a strong, visible police 
presence in our communities and continue to build 
on it in the future.

At a glance… Safer days and nights 

Page 12



Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020-2022     l     Page 7

2020 l 2022

Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020-2022     l     Page 7

Implicit in this priority is delivering sensitive, relevant 
and eff ective policing that inspires our young people to 
become law-abiding, productive members of society and 
to ensure that the ‘system’ works for them, not against 

them. Therefore, my challenge to the Constabulary is to see 
itself through the eyes of a child or young person and to 
earn their trust and support.

Adverse childhood 
experiences (ACEs) are 
stressful events occurring 
in childhood that directly 
aff ect a child (eg child 
maltreatment) or aff ect 
the environment in which 
they live (eg domestic 
violence, substance 
misuse or mental 
illness in their families). 
Gloucestershire Constabulary has led the way in focusing 
on and understanding ACEs and has driven a partnership 
approach to support young people in Gloucestershire.  
Their voices must be heard and their needs supported.  

To have any chance of this, it is vital that offi  cers 
understand the impact their interaction may have on the 
developing mind of a young person, whether for better or 
for worse.  They must understand we only have one chance 
to make a fi rst impression. Respect is a two way street – 
hard to win, easier to lose.  

The prospects for our young people in a post-Covid future 
are a major concern. Many experts fear for the mental 

health of our young people, particularly 
those who are vulnerable, as a result of the 
lockdown, the closure of schools and youth 
organisations and the impact that the death 
of relatives or seeing  ill health has. 

The long lasting eff ects of the pandemic will mean the Chief 
Constable will have to adapt how his School Beat teams 
operate. I am, however, greatly encouraged by the successes 
of the ‘Children First’ approach, which has resulted in a 
huge reduction in re-off ending. Criminalising young people 
over trivial off ences helps no-one whereas ‘Children First’ 
has diverted many away fr om a life of crime and resulted in 
much greater victim satisfaction. I will ask the Constabulary 
to continue to build on this success over the next 18 
months and, at the same time, the Commissioner’s Fund 
will continue to support youth organisations in our local 
communities. 

Young people becoming adults

l Sensitive, relevant and eff ective policing that 
inspires our young people to become law-abiding, 
productive members of society

l The Constabulary must see itself through the eyes 
of a child or young person and to earn their trust 
and support

l Offi  cers must understand the impact their 
interaction may have on the developing mind of a 
young person

l A commitment to the creation of a ‘Child fr iendly 
county’ where the voices of all children are heard 
and the needs of all children are met because a 
child has a right to enjoy childhood and safety 

l Continued support of the Volunteer Police 
and Treasure Seeker Cadets and their vital 
ambassadorial role in vulnerable areas of society 
that are traditionally diffi  cult to access and 
infl uence by adults and policing

l Recognition that our children are our greatest 
assets and we must do all that we can to prevent a 
‘lost generation’ post Covid.

At a glance…
Young people becoming adults

“Our children and 
young people are our 
greatest assets. We 
must do all we can to 
off set the harm done 
by Covid and prevent 
a lost generation.”

Page 13



Page 8     l     Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020 - 2022

Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan

l To educate offi  cers as to the disproportionate impact 
Covid has had on vulnerable groups, and ensure they 
work with relevant partner agencies to safeguard and 
facilitate access to support services 

l To engage with community groups and residential/
care homes, ensuring that vulnerable older people 
are reassured through crime prevention, education 
and an understanding of proactive Neighbourhood 
policing activity  

l That offi  cers seek to build the intelligence picture 
around those individuals who target the vulnerable, 
in order to ensure such criminality is robustly 
disrupted and prevented

l That older, vulnerable victims of crime are off ered 
enhanced support throughout the criminal justice 
process, in line with the Victims’ Code 

l The Constabulary will play its part in all our eff orts 
to drive equality and inclusiveness in our county, and 
understand what underpins this inequality

At a glance… Older but not overlooked

Since 2012, I have included ‘Older but not overlooked’ 
as a priority in the Police and Crime Plan. This has 
challenged the way the police and my offi  ce have 
approached the issue of inclusion.  The needs of 

older and/or vulnerable people/groups in the county have 
driven the work on issues such as safer cyber, hate crime, 
Neighbourhood Watch and Safe and social roads. This 
has led to the development of numerous initiatives across 
Gloucestershire.

I want to see the learning fr om and development of this 
priority extended to all groups in society so that no-one is 
overlooked.  

This priority is about inclusiveness, for example, what 
does Safer days and nights mean to members of our 
LGBTQ+ community in Gloucestershire?  What does police 

accessibility mean to people with disabilities within our 
community?  Much has been done  to address these 
issues, but as always, there is more that can be done.  I 
want Gloucestershire Constabulary to strive to be the most 
inclusive Constabulary in the country, with emphasis on 
the most vulnerable members of our society. I will always 
support every eff ort to ensure that older and/or vulnerable 
people are supported so that they can remain active 
members of our community.

I make no comment on current national or international 
politics, but it is important that recognition is given to the 
extraordinary and rapidly changing times in which we live.
I want everyone born in Gloucestershire, or choosing to live 
or work here to feel safe and to be part of our supportive 
community. To that end, I am prioritising community 
cohesion.

Older but not overlooked

Page 14



Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020-2022     l     Page 9

2020 l 2022

It is important to identify the role the police and other 
agencies can play in this area. Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service has made great progress educating our 
young people and preparing them for the roads and 

that must continue. The Special Constabulary provides 
an outstanding service in leading enforcement and must 
receive every support to continue this excellent work. 

However, a new normal COVID-19 environment, recent 
critical reports into road policing nationally and the 
continued ‘flat lining’ of road casualty numbers confirm that 
we must seek new proactive strategies to reduce casualties 
on the road.

To help support the police and the road safety community 
in achieving this goal, I have recruited a new Priority 
Lead on ‘Safe and social roads’ who brings with him a 
fresh perspective from a long career connected with the 
automotive industry and a specialism in older driver safety.  
We know that drivers aged over 60 for example are our 
most vulnerable road user group and therefore urge police 
teams be more vigilant of older drivers in their day to day 
policing especially those coming out of lockdown. 

With more than 60% of all fatal accidents occurring on 
rural roads in 2018, it is vital that we have the capability to 
enforce speed restrictions across all road networks in the 
county. That is why I have supported continued investment 
in the development of the Camera Enforcement Team and 
new technology. As well as detecting speeding offences, 
long-range cameras have  identified seatbelt offences, 
tailgating, the use of mobile phones and vehicle plate 
infringements.

On our major roads, I would like to see the Constabulary 
explore options around joint working with Highways 
England and its traffic enforcement team. I also want to see 
more community-based activity with enforcement centred 
on locally identified hotspots. I will therefore be seeking 
the views of local people to see what safe and social roads 
means to residents in our towns and villages.

The ethos of safe and social roads is the ability to move 
around our communities in safety and with as much ease 
and convenience as possible; respecting other road users, 
cyclists, horse riders and pedestrians, encouraging people 
to walk and cycle in a safe and attractive environment and 
reducing air pollution wherever possible. 

Safe and social roads 
(formerly Safe and social driving)

l	 People should be able to move around our 
communities in safety and with as much ease and 
convenience as possible

l	 The police will enforce the law when necessary, but 
we will all work to reduce offending and antisocial 
driving

l	 The Constabulary will listen to communities and 
provide a proportionate response to local road 
safety concerns

l	 The Constabulary will explore options around joint 
working with Highways England and its traffic 
enforcement team

l	 The Constabulary and the OPCC will work with 
partners to promote the benefits of safe and 
social roads in respecting road users and reducing 
pollution

l	 The Constabulary will develop localised 
interventions with partners alongside national 
campaigns

l	 The Constabulary will develop interventions with 
most at risk groups on the roads

l	 The OPCC and Constabulary will work with others 
to make it a pleasant experience to travel around 
the county and explore the beauty and tranquillity 
of Gloucestershire.

At a glance…
Safe and social roads

Page 15



Page 10     l     Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020 - 2022

Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan

Page 10     l     Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020 - 2022

A green and pleasant county 

l	Over the next 18 months I will ask the Chief 
Constable and his team to come up with a plan 
for the Constabulary to become carbon neutral by 
2035 if viable

l	 Building on the 
success of having the 
largest percentage 
of electric vehicles 
of any police force in 
England and Wales, 
the Constabulary will 
continue to work to 
explore options around the ongoing electrifi cation 
of the fl eet, where operationally appropriate

l	 The OPCC and Constabulary will develop a close 
relationship with the Government sponsored Active 
Building Centre to pioneer and demonstrate the 
many benefi ts fr om sustainable energy for any 
future building projects 

l	 As Vice Chair of the Association of the Police & 
Crime Commissioners, I am leading national work 
on this and will identify  and disseminate best 
practice to further this agenda 

l	 The Constabulary will adopt ‘a compassionate 
approach’ to all animals, including those in its 
service and other domestic, wild and working 
animals

l	 A Constabulary and county will recognise the link 
between human wellbeing and animal welfare 
and the powerful positive impact our wildlife and 
environment can have on our wellbeing

l	Under my leadership, the Constabulary will 
continue to be a beacon of good practice in the 
environmental and sustainable agenda across 
policing in the UK.

At a glance…
A green and pleasant county Gloucestershire is our county. We are blessed by the 

environment in which we live and it is incumbent 
on us all to look aft er it, and all who live in it, 
for our children and our children’s children. We 

are merely its custodians and must protect it for future 
generations. 

Despite there being no legal requirement on the 
Constabulary, I am immensely proud that for some time 
now I have been able to use my position to champion 
environmental sustainability with the commitment 
to ‘A green and pleasant county’ as part of my Police 
& Crime Plan.  I am the only PCC in the country to do 
so and, possibly because of this, Gloucestershire is the 
only Constabulary to achieve the highest environmental 
credentials with ISO 14001 certifi cation, the international 
standard for environment management systems.

I am proud that the Constabulary is leading the way in 
terms of UK policing with our commitment to electrifi cation 
of the fl eet.  Building on this success, I expect it to explore 
further options as technology and capability develops 
for further electrifi cation of the fl eet where operationally 
appropriate. 
This priority  also refl ects our respect for all animals - 
domestic, farm and wild. It establishes a ‘compassionate 
approach’ to all animals, which is fundamental to our way 
of life. 

Gloucestershire is by defi nition a rural county and the 
importance of its way of life needs to be refl ected in local 
policing.  A vibrant and successful agricultural sector is 
crucial to the county’s recovery fr om the pandemic, the 
impact of Brexit and climate change. Therefore, the OPCC 
and the Constabulary will build on the strong partnerships 
that already exist, to protect all our communities, urban or 
rural, and businesses fr om crime in all its forms.

“Under my leadership, the Constabulary will 
continue to be a beacon of good practice in 
the environmental and sustainable agenda 
across policing in the UK.”

Page 16



Gloucestershire Police & Crime Plan     l     2020-2022     l     Page 11

2020 l 2022

As with previous versions of the Police and Crime 
Plan, I have enlisted the support of Priority Leads 
to act as Plan ambassadors, to shape priorities 
and to monitor progress.  They are all subject 

experts with a passion and drive to support me, my office, 
the police, partners and wider communities in keeping 
Gloucestershire one of the safest places in the UK to work, 
live and grow.

The Priority Leads will be supported by my team to research 
best practice and innovation, to identify learning and new 
networks and to collate and monitor activity associated 
with the Plan.  They will also facilitate the inevitable cross-
over of activity between priorities such as with a focus on 
older driving safety with ‘Safe and social roads’ and ‘Older 
but not overlooked’ or with emerging crime threats with 
‘Every contact counts’ and ‘Safer days and nights’. 

The strong foundations we have built:

l	 A Constabulary that is accessible and accountable 
to you, the public

l	 A police service that works with everyone to make 
sure we can live our day and nights in the county 
feeling safe

l	 A county that cares for our young people and 
understands the difficulties of transition from 
youth to adulthood

l	 A Constabulary that understands that as we grow 
older, we become more vulnerable

l	 A county that values its animals and respects its 
wildlife and the part they play in our lives

l	 A county that works tirelessly to make our roads 
safer and encourages all road users to be more 
sociable

l	 An organisation that understands the changing 
world and the benefits and threats from the cyber 
world

l	 As the county’s fifth biggest employer, the 
Constabulary must lead and not just comply in 
ensuring Gloucestershire remains a green and 
pleasant county.

At a glance… Priority Leads

Priority Leads

DPCC Chris Brierley 
Every Crime Matters

Jane Dyer 
Young People  

Becoming Adults

Nigel Lloyd-Jones 
Safe and Social Roads

Rich Burge 
Safer Days and Nights

Hilary Allison 
A Green and  

Pleasant County

Phil Sullivan MBE 
Older But Not Overlooked

Page 17



 

For publically available crime 
statistics for your area go to: 
www.police.uk and click on 
‘Find your neighbourhood’. 

The Police and Crime Plan in 
full is available by:

Visiting: www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk

Emailing: pcc@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk

Phoning: 01452 754348

Writing to: The Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner 
No 1 Waterwells, 
Waterwells Drive, 
Quedgeley,  
Gloucester GL2 2AN

Follow Martin Surl on twitter: @GlosPCC 

Office of the PCC: @glos_opcc

Find us on facebook: www.facebook.com/GlosOPCC

Want 
to know
more?

Page 18



 

Gloucestershire Police & Crime Panel 

Report of the Chief Executive 

06 November 2020 
 

 
This is my report to the Police and Crime Panel on the activities of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Office. It is intended to assist the Panel in reviewing and scrutinising decisions made 
and actions taken by the Commissioner, in accordance with its statutory responsibilities. 
 
1. Decisions 
 
1.1 Decisions covering the period January – June 2020 can be found via the following link: 

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/reports/#1553690542293-de831160-ec96  
 
 

2. Contact, complaints and Freedom of Information Act requests 
 

2.1 The chart below shows all correspondence received by the OPCC my month between 
01/11/19 and 15/10/20: 
 

 

 
 

2.2 The chart above shows a reduction in contact received by the OPCC during lockdown and 
also shows the introduction of Covid-19 related correspondence.  In many cases this was in 
relation to concerns from residents about others not adhering to the social distancing and 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/reports/#1553690542293-de831160-ec96


lockdown guidance.  Covid-19 related contact was, in the main, referred to the 
Constabulary’s Silver command team on accordance with agreed protocols.   

2.3 The chart below shows just complaints and FOIs received by the OPCC so far this year: 
 

 

 

 

 
2.4 Following a request at the September 2020 meeting, further analysis of the complaints data 

is provided below.  The correspondence application was introduced in May 2019 and fully 
embedded by June 2019.  As such, the data below is for June 2019 to the last full month, 
September 2020.  

 

 
 

 
2.5 The following ‘stacked area’ chart looks at complaint type for the calendar year 2020 to the 

end of September.  This timeframe has been used to demonstrate the impact of the 
lockdown on complaints received by the OPCC: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Complaints made to the OPCC: June 2019 - September 2020

2019 2020

Page 20



 
 
 
2.6 There have been 30 FOI requests this calendar year and 25 this financial year.  Of the 25 

requests, two have been reallocated to the Constabulary, three are from companies 
regarding contract information, 20 are from private individuals and one is from a local 
council.    

 
 
3. Holding to account 

 
3.1 At the last Panel meeting, details relating to webcast meetings between the Chief 

Constable and the PCC were provided.  The table below provides an overview of topics 
raised under the formal Holding to Account (HTA) policy since the last meeting (September 
2020).  Please note that many other HTA issues are discussed in the weekly PCC and 
Chief Constable meetings, the subject below only relates issues raised under the formal 
HTA policy:   
 

HTA 
Ref 

Subject Background Outcome Status 

11 Contracts The Constabulary hold a variety of 
contracts procured by SWPPD or 
individual departments. These 
contracts vary in length and value and 
should provide value for money, a 
quality service and/ or provision of 
goods. 
 
The purpose of this HTA is to confirm 
the total amount of contracts in 
existence, details of ownership and 
responsible officers, contract periods 
and, to seek assurance that such 
contracts have effective oversight and 
are providing value for money. 

Effective 
understanding and 
management of all 
contracts  

Independent 
report due at 
Finance 
Panel 
29.10.20  

 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20

Complaints made to the OPCC by type: 
January 2020 - September 2020

ASB issue Complaint

Complaint against the OPCC Complaint against the police

Complaint against the Chief Constable Complaint against the PCC

Covid-19 related Crime issue / report

Road safety issue

Page 21



4. Commissioner’s Fund 
 
4.1 We are pleased to announce that our application process has now reopened for bidding 

for the year 2021/22. 
 

4.2 The Commissioner’s Fund supports activity towards the delivery of the Police & Crime 
Plan priorities, in the knowledge that the Police cannot bring about the change we need 
on their own.  More widely, the Police & Crime Plan values better connected communities 
where people utilise our collective assets and can act together to make life better. We are 
pleased to invite community groups, voluntary and public sector organisations to apply for 
small grants (up to £1,000) to support neighbourhoods working with the Police, to 
encourage a feeling of safety and to regenerate communities after Covid-19 in order to 
make Gloucestershire an even better and safer place to live, work and visit.  
 

4.3 For more information: https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/the-commissioners-fund-
2021-22/ or email Commissioners.Fund@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk  

 
 
5. OPCC Staff update 

 
5.1 I am very happy to report that since the last meeting we have been joined by our new 

intern, Annabelle White.  Anabelle studied at the University of Gloucestershire, for a 
Master’s (MSc) in Criminology which included a module on public protection.  She has also 
held the position of Vice-President of University of the West of England’s Nightline.  
 

5.2 As part of her studies, Annabelle has written a report on the variations of conviction rates 
for rape across police force areas for the Somerset and Avon Rape and Sexual Assault 
Service (SARSAS).  She has also supported writing a report for Gloucestershire Rape and 
Sexual Assault Centre (GRASAC) and is a member of their volunteering team.   

 
5.3 Members may remember that each year the OPCC offers a 12 month internship with the 

Office for a student or recent graduate.  This scheme has proved highly popular and 
successful with previous interns securing posts within the OPCC and Constabulary.  One of 
our precious interns now lectures at the University of Gloucestershire whilst studying for her 
PhD.  
 

6. Estate 
 

6.1 The Police and Crime Plan identifies the need to redevelop the site at Bamfurlong both to 
improve working conditions in keeping with our wellbeing programme and to maximise the 
strategic importance of the site. It was a commitment made prior to the last PCC election 
and since then a great deal of detailed preparatory work has been carried out, as befits 
what will be a more modern and better equipped operational base.   
 

6.2 Alongside this, Highways England are planning major road improvement works around 
junction 11 of the M5 which are scheduled for September 2020. This will include the closure 
of bridges over the M5 at junction 11 and work to the A40 (between junction 11 and the Arle 
Court roundabout) in Cheltenham. 
 

6.3 Artist’s impression images of the site were made available to view to give the public the 
chance to share their views about the application and help shape the final application to 
be made to Cheltenham Borough Council later this year.  The consultation deadline was 
25 September 2020. 
 

6.4 The new Operations Centre will help ensure that Gloucestershire Constabulary delivers 
an enhanced service to local communities as it keeps them safe from harm. It will enable 
the Force to meet the OPCC’s commitment to providing an effective estate and the 

Page 22

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/the-commissioners-fund-2021-22/
https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/the-commissioners-fund-2021-22/
mailto:Commissioners.Fund@gloucestershire.pnn.police.uk


Government’s expectation that the Constabulary makes the relevant infrastructure 
improvements needed to recruit officers, as part of its national uplift programme. 
 

6.5 Despite being an extensive redevelopment project, the PCC has saved more than £10 
million compared to initial plans, to maintain a level of affordability. Estimated costs 
currently sit at £12 million, with savings achieved through a decision to modernise a 
structurally sound vehicle workshop on the site rather that demolish it. 
 

6.6 A selection of images from the consultation are shared below: 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

 
Richard Bradley 
Chief Executive 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire 
October 2020 

Page 24


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN REFRESH
	9 OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER - CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT

